
Upper Santa Clara Valley 
Joint Powers Authority 

Regular Meeting 

Tuesday, October 17, 2023 
See Agenda for Start Time 

Members of the public may attend by the following options: 

Have a Public Comment?

Members of the public unable to attend this meeting may submit comments either in writing to ajacobs@scvwa.org or 
by mail to April Jacobs, Board Secretary, Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency, 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, 
CA 91350. All written comments received before 4:00 PM the day of the meeting will be distributed to the Board 
members and posted on the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency website prior to the start of the meeting. Anything 
received after 4:00 PM. the day of the meeting will be made available at the meeting, if practicable, and posted on the 
SCV Water website the following day. All correspondence with comments, including letters or emails, will be posted in 
their entirety. (Public comments take place during Item 1.2 of the Agenda and before each Item is considered. Please 
see the Agenda for details.) 

------------ 

This meeting will be recorded and the audio recording for all Board meetings will be posted to yourSCVwater.com 
within 3 business days from the date of the Board meeting. 

Disclaimer: Attendees should be aware that while the Agency is following all applicable requirements and guidelines 
regarding COVID-19, the Agency cannot ensure the health of anyone attending a Board meeting. Attendees should 
therefore use their own judgment with respect to protecting themselves from exposure to COVID-19. 

IN PERSON 

Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
Rio Vista Water Treatment Plant 

Boardroom  
27234 Bouquet Canyon Road  

Santa Clarita, CA 91350 

BY PHONE 

Toll Free: 1-(833)-568-8864 
Webinar ID: 161 337 5338

VIRTUALLY 

Please join the meeting from your computer, 
tablet or smartphone: 

https://scvwa.zoomgov.com/j/1613375338 

1

mailto:ajacobs@scvwa.org


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

2



27 2 34  B O UQUE T  CA NY ON  R OA D •  S A NT A  CLA RIT A ,  CA L I F ORNIA  91 35 0 -2 1 73  
P HONE  NUM B E R :6 6 1  2 97 •1 6 0 0  •  F A X  6 6 1  29 7 •1 6 11  

UPPER SANTA CLARA VALLEY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  

SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY 
RIO VISTA WATER TREATMENT PLANT  

BOARDROOM 
27234 BOUQUET CANYON ROAD 

SANTA CLARITA, CA  91350 

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 17, 2023 AT 7:00 PM  
OR IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING  

THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE  
SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

IMPORTANT NOTICE 

This meeting will be conducted in person at the address listed above. As a convenience 
to the public, members of the public may also participate virtually by using the Agency’s 

Call-In Number 1-(833)-568-8864, Webinar ID: 161 337 5338 or Zoom Webinar by 
clicking on the link https://scvwa.zoomgov.com/j/1613375338. Any member of the 

public may listen to the meeting or make comments to the Board using the call-in 
number or Zoom Webinar link above. However, in the event there is a disruption of 

service which prevents the Agency from broadcasting the meeting to members of the 
public using either the call-in option or internet-based service, this meeting will not be 
postponed or rescheduled but will continue without remote participation. The remote 

participation option is being provided as a convenience to the public and is not required. 
Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting in person.   

Attendees should be aware that while the Agency is following all applicable 
requirements and guidelines regarding COVID-19, the Agency cannot ensure the health 

of anyone attending a Board meeting. Attendees should therefore use their own 
judgment with respect to protecting themselves from exposure to COVID-19. 

Members of the public unable to attend this meeting may submit comments either in 
writing to ajacobs@scvwa.org or by mail to April Jacobs, Board Secretary, Santa Clarita 

Valley Water Agency, 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. All 
written comments received before 4:00 PM the day of the meeting will be distributed to 
the Board members and posted on the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency website prior 
to the start of the meeting. Anything received after 4:00 PM the day of the meeting, will 
be made available at the meeting, if practicable, and will be posted on the SCV Water 

website the following day. All correspondence with comments, including letters or 
emails, will be posted in their entirety. 

1. REGULAR PROCEDURES

1.1. Call to Order

B O A R D  O F  D I R E C T O R S  

P R E S I D E N T  
MARIA GUTZEIT  

V I C E  P R E S I D E N T  
KATHYE ARMITAGE 

WILLIAM COOPER 
GARY MARTIN 

PIOTR ORZECHOWSKI  

E X E C U T I V E  D I R E C T O R  
MATTHEW G. STONE 

G E N E R A L  C O U N S E L   
BEST BEST AND KRIEGER 

S E C R E T A R Y  
APRIL JACOBS 

3



October 17, 2023 
Page 2 

1. REGULAR PROCEDURES (CONT.)

1.2. Public Comments – Members of the public may comment as to items within
the subject matter jurisdiction of the Agency that are not on the Agenda at 
this time. Members of the public wishing to comment on items covered in 
this Agenda may do so at the time each item is considered. (Comments 
may, at the discretion of the Board’s presiding officer, be limited to three 
minutes for each speaker.) 

1.3. Approval of the Agenda 

2. CONSENT CALENDAR   PAGE 

2.1. *   Approve Minutes of the July 18, 2023 Regular Upper Santa
  Clara Valley Joint Powers Authority Meeting    5 

2.2. * Approve a Resolution Adopting a Revised Investment Policy  7 

2.3. * Approve Receiving and Filing of the Upper Santa Clara Valley 
Joint Powers Authority Fourth Quarter Fiscal Year 2022/23 
Investment Report    27 

3. ADJOURNMENT

* Indicates Attachment
 Indicates Handout

NOTICES 

Any person may make a request for a disability-related modification or accommodation needed for 
that person to be able to participate in the public meeting by telephoning April Jacobs, Secretary 
to the Authority, at (661) 297-1600, or in writing to Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency at 27234 
Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. Requests must specify the nature of the 
disability and the type of accommodation requested. A telephone number or other contact 
information should be included so that Agency staff may discuss appropriate arrangements. 
Persons requesting a disability-related accommodation should make the request with adequate 
time before the meeting for the Agency to provide the requested accommodation. 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open 
session agenda items and are distributed to a majority of the Board less than seventy-two (72) 
hours prior to the meeting will be available for public inspection at the Santa Clarita Valley Water 
Agency, located at 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350, during regular 
business hours. When practical, these public records will also be made available on the Agency’s 
Internet Website, accessible at http://www.yourscvwater.com.  

Posted on October 11, 2023. 

4

http://www.yourscvwater.com/


Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Upper Santa Clara Valley Joint Powers Authority – July 
18, 2023 

A regular meeting of the Upper Santa Clara Valley Joint Powers Authority was held at Santa 
Clarita Valley Water Agency, 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350 at 9:21 
PM on Tuesday, July 18, 2023 immediately following the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
regular Board meeting. A copy of the Agenda is inserted in the Minute Book of the District 
preceding these minutes. The meeting recording can be accessed by clicking on the following 
link: Authority Meeting Recording. 

DIRECTORS PRESENT: Kathye Armitage, William Cooper, Maria Gutzeit, Gary Martin and 
Piotr Orzechowski. 

DIRECTORS ABSENT: None. 

Also present: Assistant General Manager Steve Cole, Board Secretary April Jacobs, Executive 
Director Matthew Stone, General Counsel for SCV Water Joe Byrne, Information Technology 
Technician II Jonathan Thomas, Treasurer Rochelle Patterson as well as additional SCV Water 
Agency staff (Virtually) and members of the public (Virtually). 

President Gutzeit called the meeting to order at 9:21 PM. A quorum was present. 

Upon motion of Director Cooper, seconded by Vice President Armitage and carried, the 
Authority approved President Martin’s request to attend tonight’s regular Authority meeting 
remotely due to “Emergency Circumstances” and approved the Agenda by the following roll 
votes (Item 1.3). 

Vice President Armitage Yes Director Cooper Yes 
President Gutzeit  Yes Director Martin  Yes 
Director Orzechowski   Yes 

-------------- 

Upon motion of Director Martin, seconded by Director Orzechowski and carried, the Authority 
approved the Consent Calendar by the following roll call votes (Item 2): 

Vice President Armitage Yes Director Cooper Yes 
President Gutzeit  Yes Director Martin  Yes 
Director Orzechowski   Yes 

-------------- 

Upon motion of Director Cooper, seconded by Director Martin and carried, the Authority 
approved Resolution No. 2023-03 authorizing the approval of the Preliminary Official Statement 
in connection with the issuance of the Series 2023A revenue bond by the following roll call 
votes (Item 3.1):  

Vice President Armitage Yes Director Cooper Yes 
President Gutzeit  Yes Director Martin  Yes 

5

https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/board-meetings/2023/uscvjpa/USCVJPA-Meeting-Recording-071823_0.mp3
ajacobs
Draft

ajacobs
Item 2.1



Minutes of July 18, 2023 
Page 2 of 2 
 
Director Orzechowski   Yes 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-03 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE 
UPPER SANTA CLARA VALLEY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

APPROVING CERTAIN PORTIONS OF AN OFFICIAL STATEMENT 
IN CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUANCE OF REVENUE BONDS 

AND AUTHORIZING CERTAIN ACTS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH 
 

Link to Resolution No. 2023-03 
 

-------------- 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:29 PM (Item 4). 
           
 
 
                         
                          
       April Jacobs, Board Secretary 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
President  

6

https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/2023-07/USCVJPA-Resolution-2023-03.pdf


 

UPPER SANTA CLARA VALLEY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 
 
 
Date:  October 10, 2023 
 
To:  Upper Santa Clara Valley Joint Powers Authority Board of Directors 
 
From:  Rochelle Patterson 
  Treasurer 
 
Subject: Approve a Resolution Adopting a Revised Investment Policy 
___________________________________________       
 
SUMMARY AND DISCUSSION 
 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 53646, the California Legislature mandates that the 
Agency annually prepare and adopt an Investment Policy. The Authority last adopted its 
policy in October 2022. 
 
Staff’s investment advisors, Chandler Asset Management, recommend the following 
modifications to update the policy to represent code changes, as well as best practices. 
Section 8.1 has additions and deletions; Section 10.8 is newly added, and an entire Glossary 
is added to help clarify any terms, which can be seen in its entirety in the attached resolution 
(Attachment 1). 
 
Underlined red text depicts an addition, whereas struck red text is a deletion. The attached 
draft resolution includes these revisions as a clean copy. Each modified section is followed 
by a brief explanation for the change, in italics. 
 
8.0 PORTFOLIO MATURITY LIMITS 

8.1 The maximum maturity for any single investment in the portfolio shall not 
exceed five years, unless the security is a US Treasury, Agency, or Municipal 
bond, in which case the maximum maturity is 10 years. unless the Board of 
Directors has by resolution granted authority to make such an investment 
either specifically or as a part of an investment program it has approved no 
less than three months prior to the investment, or is otherwise stated in this 
policy. 

 
This updated language reflects the management directive that securities are allowed to have 
maturities up to 10 years based on the Board’s Resolution SCV-303 approval in October 
2022. 
 

10.8 The purchase of a security with a forward settlement date exceeding 45 days 
from the time of the investment is prohibited. 

 
SB 1489 (2022), which became effective January 1, 2023, prohibits the purchase of 
securities with forward settlement of greater than 45 days. Please note: although the law 
also extended the optional quarterly reports for up to 45 days, given the policy reflects only 
the mandatory monthly reports, this code change was not included.  
 

7

ajacobs
Item 2.2

ajacobs
Rochelle Patterson



 

The model glossary includes the SB 1489 (2022) new definition of maturity dates based on 
settlement date, as opposed to the generally interpreted trade date.  
 
No other changes to the policy are recommended at this time. 
 
On September 25, 2023, the Finance and Administration Committee considered staff’s 
recommendation to approve a resolution adopting a revised Investment Policy. 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
None. 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
That the Board of Directors of the Upper Santa Clara Valley Joint Powers Authority approve the 
attached resolution adopting a revised Investment Policy. 
 
RP 
 
Attachment 

8

ajacobs
Matt Stone



 

RESOLUTION NO. ____ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE 
UPPER SANTA CLARA VALLEY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

ADOPTING A REVISED INVESTMENT POLICY 
 

INVESTMENT POLICY 
 
1.0 POLICY 

1.1 WHEREAS; the Legislature of the State of California has declared that the 
deposit and investment of public funds by local officials and local agencies is an 
issue of statewide concern; and 

 
1.2 WHEREAS; the legislative body of a local agency may invest surplus monies not 

required for the immediate necessities of the local agency in accordance with the 
provisions of California Government Code Sections 53601 et seq.; and 

 
1.3 WHEREAS; the Treasurer of the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (Agency), 

acting under the direction and authority of the Finance Committee of the Agency, 
shall annually prepare and submit a statement of investment policy and such 
policy, and any changes thereto, shall be considered by the Board of Directors at 
a public meeting;  

 
1.4 NOW THEREFORE, it shall be the policy of the Agency to invest funds in a 

manner, which will provide the highest investment return with the maximum 
security while meeting the daily cash flow demands of the Agency and 
conforming to all statutes governing the investment of Agency funds. 
 

2.0 SCOPE 
This investment policy applies to all financial assets of the Agency. These funds are 
accounted for in the annual Agency audit. The Agency pools all cash for investment 
purposes. This policy is applicable, but not limited to all funds listed below: 
 

General/Operating Fund - 101 
 
Special Revenue Funds 

a) One Percent Property Tax Fund - 101 
b) Facility Capacity Fee Fund -202 
c) State Water Project Fund - 204 

 
Capital Project Fund 
Debt Service Fund 
Reserve Funds 
Enterprise Fund 
Grant Funds 
 
 
Blended Component Units 

a) Devil’s Den Water District – 970 
b) Upper Santa Clara Valley JPA – 975 
c) SCV Groundwater Sustainability Agency - 980 

9



 

 
3.0 PRUDENCE; RESPONSIBILITY 
 

3.1 Prudence: Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under 
circumstances then prevailing, including, but not limited to, the general economic 
conditions and the anticipated needs of the Agency, which persons of prudence, 
discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs; not 
for speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of their capital 
as well as the probable income to be derived. The standard of prudence to be 
used by investment officials shall be the "prudent investor" standard (California 
Government Code 53600.3) and shall be applied in the context of managing an 
overall portfolio. Investment officers acting in accordance with written procedures 
and the investment policy and exercising due diligence shall be relieved of 
personal responsibility for an individual security's credit risk or market price 
changes, provided deviations from expectations are reported in a timely fashion 
and appropriate action is taken to control adverse developments. 

3.2 Responsibility:  The Treasurer and other individuals assigned to manage the 
investment portfolio, acting with the intent and scope of this investment policy 
while exercising due diligence, shall be relieved of personal responsibility for the 
credit risk and market price risk for securities held in the investment portfolio, 
provided deviations from expectations are reported in a timely manner and 
appropriate action is taken to control adverse developments. 

4.0 OBJECTIVES 
When investing, reinvesting, purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling and managing 
public funds, the primary objectives, in priority order, of the investment activities shall be: 
 
4.1 Safety: Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program. 

Investments of the Agency shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure 
the preservation of capital in the overall portfolio. To attain this objective, 
diversification is required in order that potential losses on individual securities do 
not exceed the income generated from the remainder of the portfolio. 
 

4.2 Liquidity: The investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to enable the 
Agency to meet all operating requirements and budgeted expenditures.  
Investments will be undertaken with the expectation that unplanned expenses will 
be incurred; therefore, portfolio liquidity will be created to cover reasonable 
contingency costs.  

 
4.3 Return on Investments: The investment portfolio shall be designed with the 

objective of attaining a market rate of return throughout budgetary and economic 
cycles, taking into account the investment risk constraints and the cash flow 
characteristics of the portfolio.  The goal is to maximize return while ensuring that 
safety and liquidity objectives are not compromised. 

 
5.0 DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY 

Authority to manage the investment program is derived from California Government 
Code 53600, et seq. Overall accountability and authority for implementation of this policy 
shall remain with the Board of Directors of the Agency and overseen by the Agency’s 
Finance Committee. The day-to-day responsibility for management and implementation 

10



 

of the investment program is the responsibility of the General Manager who may 
delegate the responsibility to the Treasurer, who, where and when appropriate, shall 
establish written procedures for the operation of the investment program consistent with 
this investment policy. With this delegation the Treasurer is given the authority to utilize 
internal staff and outside investment managers to assist in the investment program. The 
Treasurer shall use care to assure that those assigned responsibility to assist in the 
management of the Agency's portfolio do so in accordance with this policy.  
 
External investment advisers may be granted discretion to purchase and sell investment 
securities in accordance with this investment policy.  
 
No person may engage in an investment transaction except as provided under the terms 
of this policy and the procedures established by the Treasurer. The Treasurer shall be 
responsible for all transactions undertaken and shall establish a system of controls to 
regulate the activities of subordinate officials. Under the provisions of California 
Government Code 53600.3, the Treasurer is a trustee and a fiduciary subject to the 
prudent investor standard. 

 
6.0 ETHICS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

The Treasurer and officers and employees involved in the investment process shall 
refrain from personal business activity that could conflict with the proper execution of the 
investment program, or which could impair their ability to make impartial investment 
decisions. Officials and staff members involved with the investment function shall 
disclose to the Board of Directors any personal financial interest with a financial 
institution, broker or investment issuer conducting business with the Agency. Officials 
and staff members shall further disclose to the Board of Directors any personal financial 
interest in any entity related to the investment performance of the Agency's portfolio. 

 
7.0 AUTHORIZED FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS AND DEALERS 

The Treasurer will maintain a list of financial institutions, selected on the basis of credit 
worthiness, financial strength, experience and minimal capitalization authorized to 
provide investment services. In addition, a list will also be maintained of approved 
security broker/dealers selected by credit worthiness who are authorized to provide 
investment and financial advisory services in the State of California. No public deposit 
shall be made except in a qualified public depository as established by state laws. 

 
For brokers/dealers of government securities and other investments, the Treasurer shall 
select only broker/dealers who are licensed and in good standing with the California 
Department of Securities, the Securities and Exchange Commission, the National 
Association of Securities Dealers or other applicable self-regulatory organizations. 

 
Before engaging in investment transactions with a broker/dealer, the Treasurer shall 
have received from said firm a signed Certification Form. This form shall attest that the 
individual responsible for the Agency’s account with that firm has reviewed the Agency’s 
Investment Policy and that the firm understands the policy and intends to present 
investment recommendations and transactions to the Agency that are appropriate under 
the terms and conditions of the Investment Policy. 
 
Selection of financial institutions and broker/dealers authorized to engage in transactions 
will be at the sole discretion of the Agency, except where the Agency utilizes an external 
investment adviser in which case the Agency may rely on the adviser for selection. To 

11



 

the extent practicable, the Treasurer or its external investment advisor shall endeavor to 
complete investment transactions using a competitive bid process whenever possible. 

 
The Agency is a local agency authorized to invest surplus monies in the Local Agency 
Investment Fund (LAIF). LAIF is a special trust fund in the custody of the State 
Treasurer and the Local Investment Advisory Board created under Government Code 
Section 16429.2, which advises the State Treasurer on the investment and reinvestment 
of LAIF deposits. Each local agency with LAIF deposits has a separate account within 
LAIF, but the total deposits in LAIF are managed as a pooled investment account. The 
securities eligible for LAIF investments are statutorily specified in Government Code 
Section 16430 and are more conservative than those investments permitted under 
Government Code Section 53601, which governs the management of invested surplus 
monies by local agencies. Accordingly, the Treasurer need not be concerned with the 
qualifications of those financial institutions and broker/dealers with whom LAIF transacts 
business. 
 

 
8.0 PORTFOLIO MATURITY LIMITS 

8.1 The maximum maturity for any single investment in the portfolio shall not exceed 
five years, unless the security is a US Treasury, Agency, or Municipal bond, in 
which case the maximum maturity is 10 years.  

 
8.2 Market risk is the risk that the portfolio value will fluctuate due to changes in the 

general level of interest rates. The Agency recognizes that, over time, longer-
term portfolios have the potential to achieve higher returns. On the other hand, 
longer-term portfolios have higher volatility of return. The Agency will mitigate 
market risk by providing adequate liquidity for short-term cash needs, and by 
making longer-term investments only with funds that are not needed for current 
cash flow purposes. 

 
The Agency further recognizes that certain types of securities, including variable 
rate securities, securities with principal paydowns prior to maturity, and securities 
with embedded options, will affect the market risk profile of the portfolio 
differently in different interest rate environments. Therefore, the duration of the 
portfolio will generally be approximately equal to the duration (typically, plus or 
minus 20%) of a Market Benchmark, an index selected by the Agency based on 
the Agency’s investment objectives, constraints and risk tolerances. 

 
9.0 AUTHORIZED AND SUITABLE INVESTMENTS 

The Agency is empowered by California Government Code 53601 et seq. to invest in the 
following: 
 
9.1 Bonds issued by the Agency. 

 
9.2 United States Treasury Bills, Notes and Bonds. 

 
9.3 Registered state warrants or treasury notes or bonds issued by the State of 

California. 
 

9.4 Registered treasury notes or bonds of any of the 49 United States in addition to 
California, including bonds payable solely out of revenues from revenue-

12



 

producing property owned, controlled, or operated by a state or by a department, 
board, agency, or authority of any of the other 49 United States, in addition to 
California. The securities are rated in a rating category of “A” or its equivalent or 
better by at least one nationally recognized statistical rating organization 
(NRSRO). No more than 30% of the portfolio may be in Municipal Securities. 

 
9.5 Bonds, notes, warrants or other evidence of debt issued by a local agency within 

the State of California, including bonds payable solely out of the revenues from a 
revenue-producing property owned, controlled, or operated by the local agency, or 
by a department, board, agency, or authority of the local agency; and also including 
pooled investment accounts sponsored by the State of California, County 
Treasurers, other local agencies or Joint Powers Agencies. The securities are 
rated in a rating category of “A” or its equivalent or better by at least one 
NRSRO. No more than 30% of the portfolio may be in Municipal Securities. The 
LAIF is an approved pooled investment account.  

 
9.6 Federal agency or United States government-sponsored enterprise obligations, 

participations, or other instruments, including those issued by, or fully guaranteed 
as to principal and interest by federal agencies or United States government-
sponsored enterprises. No more than 30% of the portfolio may be invested in any 
single federal agency/GSE issuer. The maximum percent of federal agency 
callable securities in the portfolio will be 20%. 

 
9.7 Bankers’ acceptances otherwise known as bills of exchange or time drafts that 

are drawn on and accepted by a commercial bank. Purchases of bankers’ 
acceptances may not exceed 180 days’ maturity or 40% of the Agency’s money 
that may be invested pursuant to this policy. However, no more than 30% of the 
Agency’s money can be invested in the bankers’ acceptances of any single 
commercial bank. 
 

9.8 Commercial paper of “prime” quality of the highest ranking or of the highest letter 
and number rating as provided for by a nationally-recognized statistical-rating 
organization. The entity that issues the commercial paper shall either be: 
 
9.8.1 organized and operating within the United States as a general 

corporation, shall have total assets in excess of Five Hundred Million 
Dollars ($500,000,000), and shall issue debt, other than commercial 
paper, if any, that is rated in a rating category of “A” or its equivalent or 
higher by a nationally-recognized statistical-rating organization; or 

 
9.8.2 organized within the United States as a special-purpose corporation, 

trust, or limited liability company, have program-wide credit 
enhancements including, but not limited to, over collateralization, letters 
of credit, or surety bond, and has commercial paper that is rated “A-1” or 
higher, or the equivalent, by a nationally-recognized statistical-rating 
organization. 
 

Eligible commercial paper shall have a maximum maturity of 270 days or less. 
The Agency shall invest no more than 25% of its money in eligible commercial 
paper. Under a provision sunsetting on January 1, 2026, provided that if the 

13



 

Agency has $100,000,000 or more of investment assets under management, the 
Agency may invest no more than 40% of its money in eligible commercial paper. 
 

9.9 (i) Negotiable certificates of deposit issued by a nationally or state-chartered 
bank, a savings association or a federal association (as defined by Section 5102 
of the Financial Code), a state or federal credit union, or by a federal or state-
licensed branch of a foreign bank. Purchases of negotiable certificates of deposit 
may not exceed 30% of the Agency’s money which may be invested pursuant to 
this policy. The Board of Directors and the Treasurer are prohibited from 
investing Agency funds, or funds in the Agency’s custody, in negotiable 
certificates of deposit issued by a state or federal credit union if a member of the 
Board of Directors, or any person with investment decision-making authority 
within the Agency also serves on the Board of Directors, or any committee 
appointed by the Board of Directors, or the credit committee or the supervisory 
committee of the state or federal credit union issuing the negotiable certificates of 
deposit. The amount of the NCD insured up to the FDIC limit does not require 
any credit ratings. Any amount above the FDIC insured limit must be issued by 
institutions which have short-term debt obligations rated “A-1” or its equivalent or 
better by at least one NRSRO; or long-term obligations rated in a rating category 
of “A” or its equivalent or better by at least one NRSRO. 
 
(ii) Deposits at a commercial bank, savings bank, savings and loan association or 
credit union that uses a private sector entity that assists in the placement of such 
certificates of deposit, pursuant to Government Code Section 53601.8. Deposits 
shall be subject to Government Code Section 53638 and may not exceed 50% of 
the Agency’s money which may be invested pursuant to this policy. 
 

9.10 Repurchase/Reverse Repurchase Agreements of any securities authorized by 
Section 53061. The market value of securities that underlay a repurchase 
agreement shall be valued at 102% or greater of the funds borrowed against those 
securities, and are subject to the special limits and conditions of California 
Government Code 53601(j).   
 
 

9.11 Medium term notes, defined as all corporate and depository institution debt 
securities with a maximum remaining maturity of 5 years or less, issued by 
corporations organized and operating with the United States or by depository 
institutions licensed by the United States or any state and operating within the 
United States. Notes eligible for investment under this subdivision shall be rated 
in a rating category of “A” or its equivalent or better by a nationally recognized 
rating service. Purchases of medium-term notes shall not include other 
instruments authorized by this policy and shall not exceed 30% of the Agency’s 
money which may be invested pursuant to this policy.  
 

9.12 Shares of beneficial interest issued by diversified management companies 
(mutual funds) investing in the securities and obligations authorized by this 
policy, and shares in money market mutual funds, subject to the restrictions of 
California Government Code Section 53601(l). The purchase price of 
investments under this subdivision shall not exceed 20% of the Agency’s 
investments under this policy. However, no more than 10% of the Agency’s 
money may be invested in any one mutual fund.  

14



 

 
9.13 Moneys held by a trustee or fiscal agent and pledged to the payment or security 

of bonds or other indebtedness, or obligations under a lease, installment sale, or 
other agreement of a local agency, or certificates of participation in those bonds, 
indebtedness, or lease installment sale, or other agreements, may be invested in 
accordance with the statutory provisions governing the issuance of those bonds, 
indebtedness, or lease installment sale, or other agreement, or to the extent not 
inconsistent therewith or if there are no specific statutory provisions, in 
accordance with the ordinance, resolution, indenture, or agreement of the local 
agency providing for the issuance. 
 

9.14 Notes, bonds, or other obligations that are at all times secured by a valid first 
priority security interest in securities of the types listed by California Government 
Code Section 53651 as eligible securities for the purpose of securing local 
agency deposits having a market value at least equal to that required by 
California Government Code Section 53652 for the purpose of securing local 
agency deposits. The securities serving as collateral shall be placed by delivery 
or book entry into the custody of a trust company or the trust department of a 
bank which is not affiliated with the issuer of the secured obligation, and the 
security interest shall be perfected in accordance with the requirements of the 
Uniform Commercial Code or federal regulations applicable to the types of 
securities in which the security interest is granted. 
 

9.15 Asset backed, mortgage passthrough security, collateralized mortgage 
obligation, mortgage-backed or other pay-through bond, equipment lease-backed 
certificate, consumer receivable passthrough certificate, or consumer receivable-
backed bond from issuers not defined in sections 9.2 and 9.6 shall have: 

 
9.15.1 A maximum legal final maturity that does not exceed five years.  
9.15.2 A rating category of “AA” or its equivalent or better by a nationally 

recognized rating service.  
9.15.3 May not exceed 20% of the Agency's surplus moneys that may be 

invested pursuant to this policy. 
9.15.4 No more than 5% of the portfolio may be invested in any single Asset-

Backed or Commercial Mortgage security issuer. 
 

9.16 Shares of beneficial interest issued by a joint powers authority organized 
pursuant to Section 6509.7 that invests in the securities and obligations 
authorized under Government Code Section 53601. Each share shall represent 
an equal proportional interest in the underlying pool of securities owned by the 
joint powers authority. To be eligible, the joint powers authority issuing the shares 
must have retained an investment advisor that is registered or exempt from 
registration with the Securities and Exchange Commission, have not less than 
five years of experience in investing in the securities and obligations authorized 
under Government Code Section 53601, and have assets under management in 
excess of five hundred million dollars ($500,000,000). 
 

9.17 Proposition 1A receivables sold pursuant to California Government Code Section 
53999. A “Proposition 1A receivable” constitutes the right to payment of moneys 
due or to become due to a local agency, pursuant to clause (iii) of subparagraph 

15



 

(B) of paragraph (1) of subdivision (a) of Section 25.5 of Article XIII of the 
California Constitution and Section 100.06 of the Revenue and Taxation Code. 

 
9.18 United States dollar denominated senior unsecured unsubordinated obligations 

issued or unconditionally guaranteed by the International Bank for 
Reconstruction and Development, International Finance Corporation, or Inter-
American Development Bank, with a maximum remaining maturity of five years 
or less, and eligible for purchase and sale within the United States. Investments 
under this subdivision shall be rated in a rating category of “AA” or its equivalent or 
better by a nationally recognized rating service  and shall not exceed 30 percent 
of the Agency's moneys that may be invested pursuant to this policy. No more 
than 10% of the portfolio may be invested in any single issuer. 

 
9.19 Deposits at a commercial bank, savings bank, savings and loan association or 

credit union that uses a private sector entity that assists in the placement of such 
certificates of deposit, pursuant to Government Code Section 53601.8. Deposits 
shall be subject to Government Code Section 53638 and may not exceed 50% of 
the District’s money which may be invested pursuant to this policy. 
 

9.20 Any other investment security authorized under the provisions of California 
Government Code Sections 5922 and 53601. 

  

16

http://www.westlaw.com/Find/Default.wl?rs=dfa1.0&vr=2.0&DB=1000203&DocName=CACNART13S25.5&FindType=Y
http://www.westlaw.com/Find/Default.wl?rs=dfa1.0&vr=2.0&DB=1000203&DocName=CACNART13S25.5&FindType=Y
http://www.westlaw.com/Find/Default.wl?rs=dfa1.0&vr=2.0&DB=1000222&DocName=CARTS100.06&FindType=Y


 

California Code (Source: CDIAC) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
10.0 PROHIBITED INVESTMENTS 

The following are prohibited: 
 
10.1 Investment in futures and options. 
 
10.2 Investment in inverse floaters, range notes, or mortgage derived interest-only 

strips. (Gov. Code §53601.6.) 

Highest letter and 
number rating by a 

nationally recognized 
rating service 

 

 

Highest letter and 
number rating by a 

nationally recognized 
rating service 

 

 

Highest letter and 
number rating by a 

nationally recognized 
rating service 

 

 

17



 

 
10.3 Investment in any security that could result in a zero interest accrual if held to 

maturity. Under a provision sunsetting on January 1, 2026, securities backed by 
the U.S. Government that could result in a zero- or negative-interest accrual if 
held to maturity are permitted. (Gov. Code §53601.6.) 

 
10.4 Trading securities for the sole purpose of speculating on the future direction of 

interest rates. 
 
10.5 Purchasing or selling securities on margin. 
 
10.6 The use of reverse repurchase agreements as a form of leverage, securities 

lending or any other form of borrowing or leverage. 
 
10.7 The purchase of foreign currency denominated securities. 
 
10.8 The purchase of a security with a forward settlement date exceeding 45 days 

from the time of the investment is prohibited. 
 

11.0 COLLATERALIZATION 
The Agency shall require any depository to adhere to the collateralization requirements 
of Government Code section 53652. 
 

12.0 SAFEKEEPING AND CUSTODY 
All securities owned by the Agency, except collateral for repurchase agreements, will be 
held in safekeeping at a third party bank trust department that will act as agent for the 
Agency under terms of a custody agreement. 
 
Securities used as collateral for repurchase agreements with a term of up to seven days 
can be safe kept by a third party bank trust department, or by the broker/dealer's 
safekeeping institution, acting as agent for the Agency under the terms of a custody 
agreement executed by the broker/dealer and the Agency and specifying the Agency's 
perfected ownership of the collateral.  

 
All investment transactions will require a safekeeping receipt or acknowledgment 
generated from the trade. A monthly report will be received by the Agency from the 
custodian listing all securities held in safekeeping with current market data and other 
information. Payment for all transactions will be conducted on a delivery-versus-payment 
(DVP) basis.   
 
The only exceptions to the foregoing shall be depository accounts and securities 
purchases made with: (i) local government investment pools; (ii) time certificates of 
deposit, and, (iii) mutual funds and money market mutual funds, since these securities 
are not deliverable. 
 

13.0 LEVERAGING 
Investments may not be purchased on margin.  Securities can be purchased on a "When 
Issued" basis only when a cash balance can be maintained to pay for the securities on 
the purchase settlement date. 
 
 

18



 

14.0 DIVERSIFICATION 
The Agency will diversify its investments by security type and institution. Assets shall be 
diversified to eliminate the risk of loss resulting from over concentration of assets in a 
specific maturity, a specific issuer or a specific class of securities.   
 
Diversification strategies shall be reviewed and revised periodically. In establishing 
specific diversification strategies, the following general policies and constraints shall 
apply: 
 
14.1 Portfolio maturity dates shall be matched versus liabilities to avoid undue 

concentration in a specific maturity sector. 
 

14.2 Maturities selected shall provide for stability of income and liquidity. 
 
14.3 Disbursement and payroll dates shall be covered through maturities of 

investments, marketable United States Treasury bills or other cash equivalent 
instruments such as money market mutual funds. 

 
14.4 No more than 5% of the total portfolio may be deposited with or invested in 

securities issued by any single issuer unless except treasuries, agencies, 
Supranationals, and money market funds and otherwise specified in this policy. 

 
14.5 If a security owned by the Agency is downgraded to a level below the 

requirements of this policy, making the security ineligible for additional 
purchases, the following steps will be taken: 

 
a. Any actions taken related to the downgrade by the investment 

manager will be communicated to the Treasurer in a timely manner. 
b. If a decision is made to retain the security, the credit situation will be 

monitored and reported to the Board of Directors. 
 

14.6 Credit risk is the risk that a security or a portfolio will lose some or all its value 
due to a real or perceived change in the ability of the issuer to repay its debt. The 
Agency will mitigate credit risk by adopting diversification requirements, issuer 
limitations and downgrade language.  The Agency may elect to sell a security 
prior to its maturity and record a capital gain or loss to manage the quality, 
liquidity or yield of the portfolio in response to market conditions or the Agency’s 
risk preferences. 

 
15.0 REPORTING 

Monthly transaction reports will be submitted by the Treasurer to the Board of Directors 
within 30 days of the end of the reporting period in accordance with California 
Government Code Section 53607.  
 
The Treasurer shall submit to each member of the Board of Directors an investment 
report at least monthly. The report shall include a complete description of the portfolio, 
the type of investments, the issuers, maturity dates, par values and the current market 
values of each component of the portfolio, including funds managed for Agency by third 
party contracted managers. The report will also include the source of the portfolio 
valuation. For funds, which are placed in LAIF, FDIC-insured accounts and/or in a 
county investment pool, the foregoing report elements may be replaced by copies of the 

19



 

latest statements from such institutions. The report must also include a certification that 
(1) all investment actions executed since the last report have been made in full 
compliance with the Investment Policy and, (2) the Agency will meet its expenditure 
obligations for the next six months as required by Government Code Section 
53646(b)(2) and (3), respectively. The Treasurer shall maintain a complete and timely 
record of all investment transactions.  
 

16.0 INTERNAL CONTROLS 
 The Treasurer is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control 

structure designed to ensure that the assets of the entity are protected from loss, theft or 
misuse. The internal control structure shall be designed to provide reasonable 
assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance 
recognizes that (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be 
derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by 
management.  

  
Periodically, as deemed appropriate by the Agency and/or the Board of Directors, an 
independent analysis by an external auditor shall be conducted to review internal 
controls, account activity and compliance with policies and procedures. 

 
17.0 PORTFOLIO REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE EVALUATION:  

The Treasurer shall periodically, but no less than quarterly, review the portfolio to identify 
investments that do not comply with this investment policy and establish protocols for 
reporting major and critical incidences of noncompliance to the Board of Directors.  
 
The investment portfolio shall be designed to attain a market-average rate of return 
throughout budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account the Agency’s risk 
constraints, the cash flow characteristics of the portfolio, and state and local laws, 
ordinances or resolutions that restrict investments. 
 
The Treasurer shall monitor and evaluate the portfolio’s performance relative to the 
chosen market benchmark(s), which will be included in the Treasurer’s quarterly report. 
The Treasurer shall select an appropriate, readily available index to use as a market 
benchmark. 
 

18.0 INVESTMENT POLICY ADOPTION 
The Investment Policy shall be adopted by resolution of the Agency. Moreover, the 
Policy shall be reviewed on an annual basis, and modifications must be approved by the 
Board of Directors. 

 
 

  

20



 

GLOSSARY OF INVESTMENT TERMS 
 
AGENCIES. Shorthand market terminology for any obligation issued by a government-sponsored 

entity (GSE), or a federally related institution. Most obligations of GSEs are not 
guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the US government. Examples are:  
 
FFCB. The Federal Farm Credit Bank System provides credit and liquidity in the 

agricultural industry. FFCB issues discount notes and bonds.  
FHLB. The Federal Home Loan Bank provides credit and liquidity in the housing market. 

FHLB issues discount notes and bonds.  
FHLMC. Like FHLB, the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation provides credit and 

liquidity in the housing market. FHLMC, also called “FreddieMac” issues discount 
notes, bonds and mortgage pass-through securities.  

FNMA. Like FHLB and FreddieMac, the Federal National Mortgage Association was 
established to provide credit and liquidity in the housing market. FNMA, also known 
as “FannieMae,” issues discount notes, bonds and mortgage pass-through 
securities. 

GNMA. The Government National Mortgage Association, known as “GinnieMae,” issues 
mortgage pass-through securities, which are guaranteed by the full faith and credit of 
the US Government.  

PEFCO. The Private Export Funding Corporation assists exporters. Obligations of 
PEFCO are not guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the US government.  

TVA. The Tennessee Valley Authority provides flood control and power and promotes 
development in portions of the Tennessee, Ohio, and Mississippi River valleys. TVA 
currently issues discount notes and bonds.  

ASSET BACKED SECURITIES. Securities supported by pools of installment loans or leases or by 
pools of revolving lines of credit.  

AVERAGE LIFE. In mortgage-related investments, including CMOs, the average time to expected 
receipt of principal payments, weighted by the amount of principal expected.  

BANKER’S ACCEPTANCE. A money market instrument created to facilitate international trade 
transactions. It is highly liquid and safe because the risk of the trade transaction is 
transferred to the bank which “accepts” the obligation to pay the investor.  

BENCHMARK. A comparison security or portfolio. A performance benchmark is a partial market 
index, which reflects the mix of securities allowed under a specific investment policy. 

BROKER. A broker brings buyers and sellers together for a transaction for which the broker 
receives a commission. A broker does not sell securities from their own position.  

CALLABLE. A callable security gives the issuer the option to call it from the investor prior to its 
maturity. The main cause of a call is a decline in interest rates. If interest rates decline, 
the issuer will likely call its current securities and reissue them at a lower rate of interest. 

CERTIFICATE OF DEPOSIT (CD). A time deposit with a specific maturity evidenced by a certificate. 
CERTIFICATE OF DEPOSIT ACCOUNT REGISTRY SYSTEM (CDARS). A private placement service 

that allows local agencies to purchase more than $250,000 in CDs from a single 
financial institution (must be a participating institution of CDARS) while still maintaining 
FDIC insurance coverage. CDARS is currently the only entity providing this service. 
CDARS facilitates the trading of deposits between the California institution and other 
participating institutions in amounts that are less than $250,000 each, so that FDIC 
coverage is maintained. 

COLLATERAL. Securities or cash pledged by a borrower to secure repayment of a loan or 
repurchase agreement. Also, securities pledged by a financial institution to secure 
deposits of public monies.  

21



 

COLLATERALIZED BANK DEPOSIT. A bank deposit that is collateralized at least 100% (principal 
plus interest to maturity).  The deposit is collateralized using assets set aside by the 
issuer such as Treasury securities or other qualified collateral to secure the deposit in 
excess of the limit covered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. 

COLLATERALIZED MORTGAGE OBLIGATIONS (CMO). Classes of bonds that redistribute the cash 
flows of mortgage securities (and whole loans) to create securities that have different 
levels of prepayment risk, as compared to the underlying mortgage securities. 

COLLATERALIZED TIME DEPOSIT. Time deposits that are collateralized at least 100% (principal 
plus interest to maturity).  These instruments are collateralized using assets set aside by 
the issuer such as Treasury securities or other qualified collateral to secure the deposit 
in excess of the limit covered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. 

COMMERCIAL PAPER. The short-term unsecured debt of corporations.  
COUPON. The rate of return at which interest is paid on a bond. 
CREDIT RISK. The risk that principal and/or interest on an investment will not be paid in a timely 

manner due to changes in the condition of the issuer.  
DEALER. A dealer acts as a principal in security transactions, selling securities from and buying 

securities for their own position.  
DEBENTURE. A bond secured only by the general credit of the issuer.  
DELIVERY VS. PAYMENT (DVP). A securities industry procedure whereby payment for a security 

must be made at the time the security is delivered to the purchaser’s agent.  
DERIVATIVE. Any security that has principal and/or interest payments which are subject to 

uncertainty (but not for reasons of default or credit risk) as to timing and/or amount, or 
any security which represents a component of another security which has been 
separated from other components (“Stripped” coupons and principal). A derivative is also 
defined as a financial instrument the value of which is totally or partially derived from the 
value of another instrument, interest rate, or index.  

DISCOUNT. The difference between the par value of a bond and the cost of the bond, when the 
cost is below par. Some short-term securities, such as T-bills and banker’s acceptances, 
are known as discount securities. They sell at a discount from par and return the par 
value to the investor at maturity without additional interest. Other securities, which have 
fixed coupons, trade at a discount when the coupon rate is lower than the current market 
rate for securities of that maturity and/or quality.  

DIVERSIFICATION. Dividing investment funds among a variety of investments to avoid excessive 
exposure to any one source of risk.  

DURATION. The weighted average time to maturity of a bond where the weights are the present 
values of the future cash flows. Duration measures the price sensitivity of a security to 
changes interest rates.  

FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION (FDIC). The Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation (FDIC) is an independent federal agency insuring deposits in U.S. banks 
and thrifts in the event of bank failures. The FDIC was created in 1933 to maintain public 
confidence and encourage stability in the financial system through the promotion of 
sound banking practices.    

FEDERALLY INSURED TIME DEPOSIT. A time deposit is an interest-bearing bank deposit account 
that has a specified date of maturity, such as a certificate of deposit (CD). These 
deposits are limited to funds insured in accordance with FDIC insurance deposit limits.    

LEVERAGE. Borrowing funds in order to invest in securities that have the potential to pay 
earnings at a rate higher than the cost of borrowing. 

LIQUIDITY. The speed and ease with which an asset can be converted to cash.  
LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND (LAIF). A voluntary investment fund open to government 

entities and certain non-profit organizations in California that is managed by the State 
Treasurer’s Office. 

22



 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT INVESTMENT POOL. Investment pools that range from the State Treasurer’s 
Office Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) to county pools, to Joint Powers Authorities 
(JPAs). These funds are not subject to the same SEC rules applicable to money market 
mutual funds. 

MAKE WHOLE CALL. A type of call provision on a bond that allows the issuer to pay off the 
remaining debt early. Unlike a call option, with a make whole call provision, the issuer 
makes a lump sum payment that equals the net present value (NPV) of future coupon 
payments that will not be paid because of the call. With this type of call, an investor is 
compensated, or "made whole." 

MARGIN. The difference between the market value of a security and the loan a broker makes 
using that security as collateral. 

MARKET RISK. The risk that the value of securities will fluctuate with changes in overall market 
conditions or interest rates. 

MARKET VALUE. The price at which a security can be traded.  
MATURITY. The final date upon which the principal of a security becomes due and payable. The 

investment’s term or remaining maturity is measured from the settlement date to final 
maturity. 

MEDIUM TERM NOTES. Unsecured, investment-grade senior debt securities of major corporations 
which are sold in relatively small amounts on either a continuous or an intermittent basis. 
MTNs are highly flexible debt instruments that can be structured to respond to market 
opportunities or to investor preferences.  

MODIFIED DURATION. The percent change in price for a 100-basis point change in yields. 
Modified duration is the best single measure of a portfolio’s or security’s exposure to 
market risk.  

MONEY MARKET. The market in which short-term debt instruments (T-bills, discount notes, 
commercial paper, and banker’s acceptances) are issued and traded.  

MONEY MARKET MUTUAL FUND. A mutual fund that invests exclusively in short-term securities.  
Examples of investments in money market funds are certificates of deposit and U.S. 
Treasury securities. Money market funds attempt to keep their net asset values at $1 per 
share. 

MORTGAGE PASS-THROUGH SECURITIES. A securitized participation in the interest and principal 
cash flows from a specified pool of mortgages. Principal and interest payments made on 
the mortgages are passed through to the holder of the security.  

MUNICIPAL SECURITIES. Securities issued by state and local agencies to finance capital and 
operating expenses. 

MUTUAL FUND. An entity which pools the funds of investors and invests those funds in a set of 
securities which is specifically defined in the fund’s prospectus. Mutual funds can be 
invested in various types of domestic and/or international stocks, bonds, and money 
market instruments, as set forth in the individual fund’s prospectus. For most large, 
institutional investors, the costs associated with investing in mutual funds are higher than 
the investor can obtain through an individually managed portfolio.  

NATIONALLY RECOGNIZED STATISTICAL RATING ORGANIZATION (NRSRO). A credit rating agency 
that the Securities and Exchange Commission in the United States uses for regulatory 
purposes. Credit rating agencies provide assessments of an investment's risk. The 
issuers of investments, especially debt securities, pay credit rating agencies to provide 
them with ratings. The three most prominent NRSROs are Fitch, S&P, and Moody's. 

NEGOTIABLE CERTIFICATE OF DEPOSIT (CD). A short-term debt instrument that pays interest and 
is issued by a bank, savings or federal association, state or federal credit union, or state-
licensed branch of a foreign bank. Negotiable CDs are traded in a secondary market. 

 

23

http://www.investopedia.com/terms/m/make-wholecall.asp


 

PRIMARY DEALER. A financial institution (1) that is a trading counterparty with the Federal 
Reserve in its execution of market operations to carry out U.S. monetary policy, and (2) 
that participates for statistical reporting purposes in compiling data on activity in the U.S. 
Government securities market. 

PRUDENT PERSON (PRUDENT INVESTOR) RULE. A standard of responsibility which applies to 
fiduciaries. In California, the rule is stated as “Investments shall be managed with the 
care, skill, prudence and diligence, under the circumstances then prevailing, that a 
prudent person, acting in a like capacity and familiar with such matters, would use in the 
conduct of an enterprise of like character and with like aims to accomplish similar 
purposes.”  

REPURCHASE AGREEMENT. Short-term purchases of securities with a simultaneous agreement to 
sell the securities back at a higher price. From the seller’s point of view, the same 
transaction is a reverse repurchase agreement.  

SAFEKEEPING. A service to bank customers whereby securities are held by the bank in the 
customer’s name.  

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION (SEC). The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission 
(SEC) is an independent federal government agency responsible for protecting 
investors, maintaining fair and orderly functioning of securities markets and facilitating 
capital formation. It was created by Congress in 1934 as the first federal regulator of 
securities markets. The SEC promotes full public disclosure, protects investors against 
fraudulent and manipulative practices in the market, and monitors corporate takeover 
actions in the United States.  

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION SEC) RULE 15C3-1. An SEC rule setting capital 
requirements for brokers and dealers. Under Rule 15c3-1, a broker or dealer must have 
sufficient liquidity in order to cover the most pressing obligations. This is defined as 
having a certain amount of liquidity as a percentage of the broker/dealer's total 
obligations. If the percentage falls below a certain point, the broker or dealer may not be 
allowed to take on new clients and may have restrictions placed on dealings with current 
client.  

STRUCTURED NOTE. A complex, fixed income instrument, which pays interest, based on a 
formula tied to other interest rates, commodities or indices. Examples include inverse 
floating rate notes which have coupons that increase when other interest rates are 
falling, and which fall when other interest rates are rising, and "dual index floaters," 
which pay interest based on the relationship between two other interest rates - for 
example, the yield on the ten-year Treasury note minus the Libor rate. Issuers of such 
notes lock in a reduced cost of borrowing by purchasing interest rate swap agreements.  

SUPRANATIONAL.  A Supranational is a multi-national organization whereby member states 
transcend national boundaries or interests to share in the decision making to promote 
economic development in the member countries. 

TOTAL RATE OF RETURN. A measure of a portfolio’s performance over time. It is the internal rate 
of return, which equates the beginning value of the portfolio with the ending value; it 
includes interest earnings, realized and unrealized gains, and losses in the portfolio. 

U.S. TREASURY OBLIGATIONS. Securities issued by the U.S. Treasury and backed by the full 
faith and credit of the United States. Treasuries are considered to have no credit risk and 
are the benchmark for interest rates on all other securities in the US and overseas. The 
Treasury issues both discounted securities and fixed coupon notes and bonds.  

TREASURY BILLS. All securities issued with initial maturities of one year or less are issued as 
discounted instruments and are called Treasury bills. The Treasury currently issues 
three- and six-month T-bills at regular weekly auctions. It also issues “cash 
management” bills as needed to smooth out cash flows.  

24



 

TREASURY NOTES. All securities issued with initial maturities of two to ten years are called 
Treasury notes and pay interest semi-annually.  

TREASURY BONDS. All securities issued with initial maturities greater than ten years are called 
Treasury bonds. Like Treasury notes, they pay interest semi-annually.  

YIELD TO MATURITY. The annualized internal rate of return on an investment which equates the 
expected cash flows from the investment to its cost. 

 
(Originally Adopted February 2018; Re-adopted January 2019; Revised February 2020, 
February 2021, February 2022, October 2022 and October 2023.) 
 

 

25



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

26



27

ajacobs
Item 2.3



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

28



29

edill
Rochelle signature

edill
Amy signature



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

30



31


	Information Sheet
	Agenda
	Item 2.1
	Item 2.2
	Item 2.3



